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NOTICE OF 11™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Eleventh Annual General Meeting of the members of ARTISAN
SPIRITS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No.: U15122MH2011PTC222280) will be held on THURSDAY,
26™ MAY, 2022 at 11:30 A.M. (IST) at the registered office of the Company at 901, HUBTOWN
SOLARIS, N.S. PHADKE MARG, ANDHERI (E), MUMBAI - 400069 to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To re-appoint M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
001076N/ N500013), Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof) and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 001076N/ N500013) be
and are hereby re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for term of five consecutive
years, who shall hold office from the conclusion of this 11* Annual General Meeting till the conclusion
ofthe 16™ Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027 on such remuneration as may be decided
by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Statutory Auditors of the Company.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or the Company Secretary be and are hereby
authorized severally file necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all things, deeds
and matters as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

3. Appointment of Monit Dhavale as a Non-Executive Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as Ordinary resolution: -

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Monit Dhavale (DIN: 09355541) who has been appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from October 11, 2021 by the Board of Directors pursuant to
Section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who holds office as such up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.
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NOTES:

1.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF. A PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING
THE PROXY MUST BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed
thereunder, a person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding
in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.
A Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as a proxy and such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person
or Member,

All documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the company during office hours on all working days except Saturdays between 11.00
a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the 11" Annual General Meeting.

Corporate Members are requested to send duly certified copy of Board Resolution/Power of
Attorney authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the General Meeting.

Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in for attending the meeting.

Shareholders seeking information regarding Accounts are requested to write to the Company in
advance so as to enable the management to keep the information ready.

The route map for reaching at the venue with prominent landmark is provided at the end of the
Notice.

By Orde:§f the Board of Directors

For Artisgw8pi

Company Secretary
Membership No. A50009

Registered Office:

901, Hubtown Solaris,

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E),
Mumbai - 400069

(CIN No.: UI5122MH2011PTC222280)
Date: MM,{ \8, Q020

Place: Mumbai
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 2

The Board of Directors had appointed Mr. Monit Dhavale (DIN: 09355541) as an Additional Director of
the Company with effect from October 11, 2021.

Pursuant to Section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Monit Dhavale who was appointed as an
Additional Director up to the date of this Annual General Meeting is eligible to be appointed as a Director.

The Board of Directors are confident that his knowledge and experience will be a great value to the
Company and hence recommends the ordinary resolution for your approval.

None of the Directors expect Mr. Monit Dhavale, in his capacity of being a Director, is in any way
concerned or interested in the resolution.

By Ordexgof the Board of Directors
For Ar{i@ﬁ irits Private Limited

P

Kil@i ovani

Company Secretary
Membership No. A50009

Registered Office:

901, Hubtown Solaris,

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E),
Mumbai - 400069

(CIN No.: U15122MH2011PTC222280)

Date:  May & 2029

Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Details of Director Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment at the Annual General Meeting

Name

Mr. Monit Dhavale

Directors Identification Number (DIN)

09355541

Age

34

Qualification

He holds a bachelor’s degree of technology in home science
from Nagpur University and master of personnel management
from Savitribhai Phule Pune University (earlier known as
University of Pune). He has also successfully completed a
course in bar and beverage management from the Educational
Institute of the American Hotel and Lodging Association and
was also awarded the WSET Level 1 Award in Wines (QCF)
by the Wines and Spirit Education Trust Limited.

Experience

He has previously worked with the Mahatma Gandhi
Vidyamandir’s Institute of Hotel Management and
Catering Technology in various capacities.

Terms & Conditions of appointment/re-
appointment

Details of Remuneration

Date of first Appointment on the Board
of the Company

October 11, 2021

Shareholding in the Company

Relation with other Directors, Manager
or KMP

Chairmanship of committees of other
Boards

No. of Meetings of Board attended 2
during the year
Other Directorship, Membership/ Nil




ARTISAN SPIRITS PRIVATE LIMITED

Directors’ Report

To,
The Members,

The Directors present the 11" Annual Report and the Audited Accounts of Artisan Spirits Private
Limited for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

1. Financial Highlights

(INR in millions)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Gross Income 436.59 461.60
Profit Before Interest and Depreciation

(EBITDA) 65.84 56.89
Finance Charges 36.53 28.32
Provision for Depreciation 12.32 1.83
Net Profit Before Tax 16.99 26.74
Provision for Tax - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (0.83) (0.09)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 16.16 26.65
Balance of Loss brought forward (295.48) (322.13)
Balance not available for appropriation - -
Balance available for appropriation - -
Dividend paid on Equity Shares

Transfer to General Reserve - -
Deficit carried to Balance Sheet (279.32) (295.48)

Your directors are hopeful for the bright future of the Company in the years to come.

2. Review of Operations

The Company’s revenue declined by 5.4% from INR 461.60 million in FY21 to INR 436.59
million in FY22. However, EBIDTA has improved by 15.7% from INR 56.89 million in FY21
to INR 65.84 million in FY22 while the Profit Before Tax decreased by 36.5% from INR 26.74
million in FY21 to INR 16.99 million in FY22.

3. State of Affairs

The company has changed it business strategy to distribute most of the groups Imported wines
and spirits business under Artisan Spirits Private Limited in the previous year. In the current




4.

5.

year the company further rationalized the bands under distribution to focus on only profitable
brands and hence improve the overall EBIDTA margins.

Further the company acquired assets and liabilities (refer below) of York Winery Private
Limited for an overall purchase consideration of * 171.65 million. The same amounts to an
acquisition under Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations and accordingly the recognition,
measurement as well as presentation/ disclosure requirements of Ind AS 103 have been
complied with.

Total Purchase consideration payable 171.65
Fixed Assets (Building and Plants) 74.65

Brands 60.30

Inventory 36.79

Other Assets (Trade Receivables, Advances) 13.19

Current Liabilities (21.71)

Less : Net assets acquired (163.22)
Goodwill (As per Ind AS 103 Business combinations) 8.43

The above acquisition will further strengthen the business of the company and is projected to
yield better profitability for the company on the future.

Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Thirty
Crore) comprising of 3,00,00,000 (Three Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only)
each by Rs. 6,00,00,000/- (Rupees Six Crore only) consisting of 60,00,000 (Sixty Lakh) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 36,00,00,000/- comprising of 3,60,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

During the year under the review, the paid-up Share Capital of the Company was increased by
Rs. 6,00,00,000/- (Rupees Six Crore only) consisting of 60,00,000 (Sixty Lakh) Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 35,350,000 consisting of 35,35,00,000 (Thirty-Five
Crores and Thirty Five Lakhs) Equity Shares Rs. 10/- each.

Dividend

The Directors have not recommended any dividend for the year 2021-22 to conserve profits
for future operations of the business.




6.

10.

Transfer of Reserves

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the reserves.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, following are the changes in Directors of the Company:

1. Mr. Neeraj Sharma (DIN: 08881532) resigned as the Director of the Company with effect
from the October 9, 2021.

2. Mr. Monit Dhavale (DIN: 09355541) appointed as the Additional Director with effect from
October 11, 2021.

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by Mr. Neeraj
Sharma during their tenure.

Director(s) Disclosure

Based on the declarations and confirmations received from the Directors, none of the Directors
of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors of the Company.

Meetings of the Board

The Board of Directors duly met 6 times during the financial year from 1% April 2021 to 31
March 2022. The dates on which the meetings were held are June 30, 2021, July 14, 2021, July
14, 2021 (evening), September 13, 2021, October 11, 2021 and December 14, 2021.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your
Company confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
company for the same period;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and
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12.

13.

14.

(e) proper internal financial controls laid down by the Directors have been followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively.

(f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place
and that such systems are adequate and are operating effectively.

Auditors

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
001076N/N500013), have been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 6th
AGM held on 25th September, 2017 for a 2nd term of 5 years from conclusion of 12th AGM
till the conclusion of the 17th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027 subject to
ratification of their appointment by Members at every AGM till the 17th AGM at such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the
amendments of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Companies Amendment Act,
2017 notified on 7th May, 2018, the requirement of ratification of their appointment by the
Members has been withdrawn.

M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, have confirmed their eligibility and qualification required
under Section 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
issued thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the
time being in force).

Extract of Annual Return

The extract of annual return in Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies
Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and
available on the Company’s website at www.sulavineyards.com.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate Companies:

The Company has no subsidiaries, associate companies or joint venture companies within the
meaning of section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

A statement in Form AOC-1 as required under Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
containing salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies is forming

part of this Annual Report in “ANNEXURE-I”.

Material changes and commitments if any. affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report;

Other than as disclosed in the financial statements, the directors are not aware of any other
matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which have
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations and the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent years.
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16.

17.

18.

Risk management

Risk Management is considered as one of the important aspects of our corporate strategy. Risk
Management Policy has been adopted in pursuance to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
which promotes a proactive approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated
with the business. Periodic assessment of risks assists the Board of Directors in overseeing the
Company's risk management processes and controls.

During the year, no major risks were noticed, which may threaten the existence of the
Company.

Particulars of Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit (under Rule 2[c] of the Companies [Acceptance of
Deposits] Rules, 2014) within the meaning of Sections 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force).

Loans, Guarantees and investments

Pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 disclosure on particulars relating to Loans,
Advances, Guarantees and Investments are provided as part of the financial statements.

Details of adequacy of internal financial controls

The Company has an effective internal control and risk mitigation environment which ensures
that the business and operations are managed efficiently and effectively, assets are
safeguarded, regulatory requirements are complied with and that all transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

The Company remains committed to improve the effectiveness of internal control systems for
business processes regarding its operations, financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

19. Explanation to Remarks: In the Statutory Auditors’ Report

20.

The statutory audit report for the year 2021-22 does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark or disclaimer made by Statutory Auditors.

Maintenance of Cost Records

The provisions pertaining to maintenance of Cost Records as specified by the Central
Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not




21.

22.

23.

24,

applicable to the Company.

Contracts or arrangements with related parties

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are periodically
placed before the Board for its approval and the particulars of contracts entered during the year
as per Form AOC-2 is enclosed as “ANNEXURE II”

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts or
Tribunals which would impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace

Your Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy and conducive environment for all
persons associated with us. Internal Complainant Committee/ Complainant Redressal
Committee has been constituted at various locations pursuant to the provisions of the
Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace which shall ensure complete
confidentiality and fair enquiiy process of the complaints received. During the year under
review, no cases of sexual harassment were reported.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

A. Conservation of energy

Your Company understands the importance of conserving energy and all possible efforts
have been made to minimize its consumption.

B. Technology absorption, adoption and innovation

Company has made all possible efforts to absorb the technology to its fullest capacity. No
major adaptations and innovations carried out in the technology are being used.

C. Foreign earnings and Outgo

(in millions
Foreign Exchange Year ended | Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(i) Earnings 23.28 279.68

(i) Outgo 178.33 163.05




25. Secretarial Standards

The Secretarial Standards SS-1 and SS-2 issued and notified by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India has been complied with by the Company during the financial year under
review.

26. Acknowledgements

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members
during the year under review. Your Directors take this opportunity to wish to place on record
their deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the Company’s executives, staff
and workers. The Directors would also like to thank the shareholders for their support and
contribution. We look forward to their continued support in future.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

W2

Place: Mumbai Chaitanya Rathi Bittit Varghese
Date: MAJJ 2, 1022 Director Director
DIN: 07705302 DIN: 08708247




ANNEXURE - |

FORM NO.AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014)

-~

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in
sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms’ length transaction under four proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis - N.A.

SL. Particulars Details
No.

a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any

e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ N.A.

f) | Date of approval by the Board

g) | Amount paid as advances, if any

h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first

proviso to section 188




2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

equipment/ *Loan taken
from/ Loan repaid to/ Rent
Expense/ Interest expenses/
Corporate Guarantee Received

May 28,2019

May 14, 2020
July 15, 2021

September 18, 2019

Sr. Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of the Salient terms of the Date of approval by | Amount paid as
No related party & contracts/ contracts/ contracts or arrangements the Board advances, if
nature of arrangements | arrangements/ | or transaction including the any

relationship /transaction transaction value, if any
1. | Sula Vineyards | As per Board | Ongoing Purchase of products/ March 20, 2015 Nil
Limited Resolution W&m of E.oﬁwcnmm\ mam_m of May 31, 2016
*Loan mmmwwmrw \m%cwnﬂ ase of September 12,2017
Agreement Property, plant and February 01, 2, 019

Form shall be signed by the people who have signed the Board’s Report.

Place: Mumbai

Date: 7)?& \3 \ 9999

For and on belalf of the Board of Directors

Bittu Varghese
Director
DIN: 08708247

Chaitanya Rathi
Director
DIN: 07705302
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

11th Flocr, Tower 11,

Cine Infernalional Canter,
5 B Marg, Prabhadawi (W),
Murmbai - 400013
Maharashtra, India

T 191 22 6626 2699
F +41 22 6626 2601

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

. We have audited the accompanying financial slatements of Artisan Spirits Private Limited

. ('the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Staterment of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinioh and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformily with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind A"} specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 2t 31 March 2022,
and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Fthics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI') together with the
athical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Page 1 of 13
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's Report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover tha other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
staternents, or our knowlzdge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matlers stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial stalements that give a true and fair view of the financial
pasition, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecling frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
stalements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
eIrar.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concem basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or fo cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporling process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud ar error, and to issug an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
eonductad in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggreqgate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frem error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an undaerstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to financial stalements in place and the operaling effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to avents or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 1o continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
ta the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair prasentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

11.

12,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

s required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

13, Further o our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

o)

d)

)

aj

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books,

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreemeant with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure || wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

i, The Campany, as detailed in Note 30Aji) to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2022]

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

fi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022; and

a.  The management has represented that, to the bast of its knowledge and beliefl, as disclosed in
note 42 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
{either from barrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘'the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited

b. The management has represanied that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 42 {vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {the Funding Parties), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or enfities idenfified in any manner
whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢, Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come lo our attention that causes us to believe that the

managemant representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022,

N
For Walker Chandiok &‘-.I(}u LLP
Chartered Accountants |

Firm's Registration| Mo:D01076MN/ME00013

Rakesh R.
Fartner
Memb

UDIN:22109632AJDZKS4340

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2022
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditer's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Artisan Spirits Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records gxamined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we
report that:

i {a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

" (b} The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a phased
manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, cerlain property,
plant and equipment and right of use assetls were verifiad during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The tille deeds of all the immowvable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lesseer) are held in the name of the Company.

{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Right of Use assets or
intangible assets during the year,

(e} Mo proceedings have been initiated ar are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){e) of the Order is not applicable fo
the Company.

(i) (&) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and
procedurs of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10%
or mare in the aggregate for 2ach class of inventory were noficed. In respact of inventory lying
with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by the third parties.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

{b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of ¥ 5 crore (I 50 million) sanctioned by bank
based on the security of current assets. The guarterly statements, in respect of the working capital
limits have been filed by the Company wilh such bank and such statements are in agreement with
the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were not subject to audit,
except for the following:

~ B (% In million)
Mame of
the Bank
. | Amount Amount
[cr:l?:::li & :i[;:i::llﬁmit e Particulars isrinasnd B3 pel Difference Fﬂf;f::;k?;
assets sanctioned Ended a3 oy boakE: of any ;
return accounts
offered as
security] ] - )
SBEM Bank | F 80 million | 30 June Trade 186.57 184.15 2.42 The
{India) 2021 Receivables | difference
Limited is mainly
[Entira due to
Currant provision
Assals) for doubtful
deabt not
considanad
whila
submitting
stock
B _statement
a0 Imventory 103.52 106,54 (3.02) | The
September | Trade 180.92 191.25 (1.33) difference
2021 Receivables - is due to
3 Inventory 118.685 11804 0.61 the
December [ Trade 211.04 199.71 11.33 declaration
2071 Receivables to the Bank
are made
hafore
financial
reparting
closune
1 ProcRsEs
(iii) (a) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted

any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) during the year. However, the Company has granted loan
to others as per the details given below:

Particulars

| - Others

Aggregate amount during the year

1
date

- Others

} % in million

| Balance outstanding as at balance sheet

0.17

0.25

Fage ¥ of 13

Cherard &ccounlanls

Céfices in Dengatun, Chandigh, Channal, Curugram Hyderahad, £ochi, Eotkals, Mumiai, Bew Dalbl. Nofda and Fune

walker Chardiak & Co LLP iz negislensd
wihn limitad kability with idoredication
rurmber AAG-2005 ared has il regislensd
aflics at L-41, Carmaushl Cirous, Oualer
Circle, Mew Oelhi, 11000, Indls




Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd]

(iv)

(v}

(wi)

(vii)(a)

(b) The Company has not made any investments, provided any guaraniee or given any
security during the year. However, the Company has granted loans which in our opinion,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions
of the grant of loan are, prima facie, nof prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loan to such other parties.

(@) The Company has granted loans which had fallen due during the year but such loans and
weare repaid on or before the due date. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party
to settle the overdue loans.

{fi The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company has not enlered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reparting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our apinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemad
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Central Governmeant has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-saction (1)
of section 148 of the Act, in respecl of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly,
reparting under clause 3(vi) of the Crder is not applicable,

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given o us, the Company is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
axcise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the dale they became
payabla.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd

{b) According to the informalion and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred
in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate autharities on account
of any dispute except for the following:

- B (Fin million)
Amount | Periodto |
MName of the | Mature | Gross paid which the Forum where dispute is
statute of dues | Amount | under amount pending
Protest | relates
Sales Tax - MVAT 0.24 - F.¥.16-17 Assistant Commissioner of
Maharashtra State Tax - Maharashtra
Employees ESIC 0.53 - January Sub Regional Office Marol
State 201510 Ermployees State Insurance
Insurance Decembar Corporation
| Aet, 1948 2019
| Maharashtra | Water 0.73 - F.Y. 2011-12 | Nashik Irrigation Division,
Irrigation Act | tax lo F.Y. 2020- | Mashik
1976 21
Sales Tax - MVAT 0.23 - F.¥.2018-19 | Assistant Commisioner of
iMaharashira | Sales Tax-Maharashira

{viiij  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

{i%) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
ithat the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender.

{c) Inmour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though
idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in
readily realisable liquid investmenls.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial stalements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.,

(&) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd}

{¥) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(by During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares, In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the requirements of
section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder with respect to the same. Further,
the amounts so raised have been utilized by the Company for the purposes for which these funds were
raised.

(%) (a) Tothe best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
by the Company or an the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our
audit,

{b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government for the period
coveraed by our audil.

{c¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year,

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details
of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements efc., as required
under, Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Parly Disclosures specified in Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further,
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute
an audit committee under section 177 of the Act,

{xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal audit
system. Aceordingly, reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable lo the Company.

{xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered inta any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of
section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reparting under clause 3(uwil(a) to (¢} of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Further, based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016} does not have any CIC.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

(i)

(0w

(13

(x)

{xxi)

Chartered Accountants

The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately preceding
financial year.

Thare has been no resignation of the slatulory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3{owiil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management, and based on our examinafion of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us fo believe thal any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheel as and when they fall due within a pericd of ona year from the
halance sheat dale. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the fulure viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantes nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria as
specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporale Social Responsibility
Falicy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The reporting under clause 3{xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements
of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For Walker Chalfliuk &\Co LLP

Rakesh R. A
FPartner

Membership Mo: 108632

UDIN:22109632A.JDZK 54340

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2022
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Artisan Spirits Private
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Artisan Spirits Private Limited ('the Company’)
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as at that date,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial eontrols with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the Guidance Mole”) issuad by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (*the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of intarnal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Mota issued by the ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respeacts.

Our audit involves performing proceduras to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
cantrols with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statemenis includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness oxists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or error.

We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained iz sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure Il (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) perlain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendilures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or limely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assels that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls wilh reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
cantrols with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or proceduras may deteriorale.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteriz established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walker C and‘lpk & CoLLP

Membership No:109632
UDIN:22109632AJDZKS4340

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2022

Page 13 of 13

Chartered Arocunkanis Walker Chandiok & Co LLP |5 ragestarand
willu liited Bability wih idenlifice®an
Ofices in Dongalu, Chendigah, Chesns, Gunmran, Hyrerahad, Kochi, Kolsals, Mombai, Hew Dedi, Hubda 2o Mg rminer Aa0-208% and has s reosleed

office al L-41, Connaught Circus, Outar
Ciircle, Mow Delkd, 110001, India



Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Amount in F million, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Maon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Fighl-of-use assots
Goodwill
Other Intangible assals
Financial assels

Loans

Mher financial assets
Deferred lax assats
Income tax assels
Other non-current assets
Total non-current asseis

Current assels
Inventarics
Financlal assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalants
Laans
Other financial assels
Dther current aszsels
Total current assels

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equify share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liahbilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Other finanaial liakilities
Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liahilities

Financial labilites
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entarprisos
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and

small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Provizions
Other current liabilities

Total current liahilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial stalements

Mote No.

N

o

0 =~ =~ th &7

10
11
12

o

13

14
15

17

14
15
18

16
17
14

As at
31 March 2022

A= at

31 March 2021

127.18 2,21
1.20 -
£.43 .

55.49 4
0.17 0.20
6.24 A6
211 1.39
4.76 8.42

205.67 15.38

115.53 B

188.02 210,37
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
{Amount in T million, unless otherwise stated)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our audit reporl of even data

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Artisan Spirits
Private Limited

W e

Chaitanya Rathi Bittu Varghese
Diractor Director
DI : 07705302 DiM - 08705247

Kinjaf Govani
Company Secrefary
Membearship Mo, AS0009

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2022 Dale: 18 May 2022



Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote No. Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Income

Revanue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-

lrade

Excise duty on sales

Employen benefits expense
Selling and distribulion expansas
Other expenses

Total expenses

Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax, Amortisation

(EBIDTA)

Finance costs
Depreciation and amertisation expense

Profit before tax
Tax expense
Net profit for the year (A)

Other comprehensive income! (loss) (QCI)

[tems thal will notl be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss

- Gainf {loss) on remeasurcment of defined benefit plans

Itema that will be reclassified subsequently to stalemant of profit or loss

- Cash flow hedge reserve
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (B)

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+E)

Carnings per equity share of nominal value ¥ 10 each
Basic {in T)
Diluted (in )

20 433.25 45055
21 3.34 2.05
436.59 461.60

22 60.47 5.70
236 51 38599
24 (21.37) {40.98)

0.52 -

24 15.07 471
25 21.27 21.27
26 58,28 28.02
370.75 404,71

65.84 56.89

27 36.53 28.32
28 12.32 1.83
16.99 26.74

7 . .

16.99 26.74

3 (0.83) 0.12
-  (n21)
{0.83) (0.09)

16.16 26,65

20 0.53 0.09
0.53 0.09

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Statemenl of Prafil and Loss referred
to in our audil report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Actountants
QM 0FEN f NE00013

Rakesh arwal
Partm

Membership Mo, @ 108632

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 18 May 2022

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors of Artisan
Spirits Private Limited

W ,,

Chaitanya Rathi Bittu Varghese

Dircctor Direcior
DIk : 0BT08247

DIN = Q7706302

Kinjal Govani
Company Secratary
Membearship Mo, ASD008

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2022



Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM QOPERATING ACTIVITIES

Met profit bafore tax 16.99 26.74
Adjustments for
Dapredciation and amortization expense 12.32 1.83
Interest expenss 32.05 26.03
Interest income {3.11) (1.848)
Provisions no longer required written back (4.68) {3.56)
Impairment allowance on financial assals 2.45 1.27
Unrealised exchange loss/ (gain) on foreign currency translations (net) (0.16) n.or
Loss on property, plant and equipment disposed! written-ofl (net} - 2.84
38.87 26,53
Operating profit before working capital changes 55,86 5327
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
{Increase) Decreasa in inventonies TA3 [35.23)
{Increase) Decrease in trade receivanles 30.58 [37.89)
{Increase) Doecrease in current f nen-current financial and other assets 6.11 2413
Increase/ (Decrease) in rade payables and olher financial other liabilites {44.57) 73.47
{0.45) 24,88
Cash generated from operations 55.41 78.15
[irect taxas paid (0.72) (013
Met cash generated from operating activities {A) 54.69 F8.02
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchasze of property, plant and equipment (55.04) =
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 4.26
Procecds from § (Investments in) bank deposits with original maturity of more than thraa manths 19.72 {60.55)
Interest received 3.30 .85
Consideration paid for acquisition of business (Refer note 41) i (161.65) =
Met cash used in investing activities (B} (193.67) {45.44)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Froceeds from long-term borrowings 621.61 517.26
Repayment of long-term borrowings (458.98) (558.60)
Proceeds from {Repayment of) shor-term borrowings (net) [25.62) 50.26
Proceeds from issus of equity share capital 60.00 -
Interest paid (53.45) [51.60)
Repayment of lease liabilities {0.50) -
Met cash generated fromi{used in) financing activities (C) 143.06 {42.68)
Met increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 4.08 {10.10)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.25 13.35
Add: Cazh and cash equivalents acquirad in business combination (refer note 41) 0.13 -
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (Refer note 11) 7.46 3.25
Mota:

-

The cash flow statemnent has been prapared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) statamant of
cash flows.

2 Additions 1o proparly, plant and equipment include movements of capital work-in-progress, capital advances and liability for capital goods.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our awdit
report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of Arfisan Spirits Private Limited

Chartered Accountzn
5
WA

Firm Re rs'_lratinn o2 O0T07EM f NS00013

Chaitanya Rathi Bittu Varghese
Director [iresctor
DM - 07705302 DM 08708247
4
jal Gowvani
Company Secretary

Mermbership Mo, ABDLROG

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2022 Dale: 18 May 2022



Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amaunt In ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

a) Equity share capital

Particulars Number # million
Equily shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribad and paid up
As at 1 April 2020 2.93,50,000 293.50
Issuead during the year ! a
As at 31 March 2021 2,93,50,000 29350
Issued during the year &0,00,000 G0.00
As at 31 March 2022 3,53,50,000 353.50
b) Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Other reserve Total

Retained carnings Cash flow hedge

resarve

As at 1 April 2020 (322.13) = (322.13)
Profil for {he year 26.74 : 26.74
Other comprehensive income /loss) for the year 012 (0.21) (0.09)
As at 31 March 2021 {295.27) (0.21) (295.48)
Profit for the year 16.99 - 16.89
OCI items reclassified o statement of profit or loss (0.21) 0.21 -
Other comprehensive loss for the year (0.83) - (0,83)
As at 31 March 2022 (279.32) - (279.32)

Mature and purpose of reserves

i. Retained earnings

Retained eamings ropresents the losses that the Company has incurred Lill dale including gain / {loss) on remeasurament of defined bencfits
plans as adjusted for distributions to owners, transfer o other reserves elo.

ii, Cash flow hedge

For the forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges, the elleclive porlion of the fair value of forward contracts are recognised in cash flow
hadging reserve under other equity. Upon de-recognition, amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are taken to Statement of profit

or lnss at the same time as the related cash flow.,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial stalements

This is the Statement of Changes in Equily referred to in our audit

report of even dale

Partner
fembership Mo, ; 109632

Flace: Mumbai
Dale: 18 May 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Artisan Spirits Private

Limited

\
Chaitanya Rathi

Director
DI - 0770530

K;ﬁja] Gavani

Company Secretary
Membership Mo, ARQO009

Place: Mumbai
Data: 18 May 2022

ittu Varghese

DIM = 08708247



Mote 1 Corporate Information

Artisan Spirits Private Limited (the "Company”) is a private company domiciled and headquartered in Mumbai, India
and was incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Acl, 1956, The Company having CIN
U15122MH2011PTC222280 is engaged in the business of manufaclure, purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages.
The registered office of the Company is located at 901 Hubtown Solaris N.5. Phadke Marg, Andheri East, Mumbai-
400069,

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Mfinancial statements”) were
authorised for issue in accordance with reselution of Board of Directors on 18 May 2022,

Mote 2.1 Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) read
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from lime 1o lime notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention with the exception of certain
financial assets and liabilities and share based payments which have been measured at fair value, on an accrual
basis of accounting.

The Company's financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company's functional
currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest million (INR 000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

. Operating cycle and current, non-current classification

Based on the nature of services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current/ non-current classificalion of assels and liabilities. The Company presents assets and
liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current! non-current classification.

An Asset is Current when:

It is expected to be realised in normal operating cycle.

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
s |t is cash or cash equivalenl.

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A Liability is current when:

¢ |t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

o Ilis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

o |Lis due lo be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabilily for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liahililies are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respectively,




Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of
Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of conlingent liabilities as at the date of financial staterments and the results
of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management's besl
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which are recognised
in the period in which they are determined.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in
which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

Management believes thal the estimates used in the preparation of the financial slatements are prudent and
reasonable. Examples of such eslimales include estimation of useful lives of property plant and equipment,
omployee costs, assessments of recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets, trade receivables and cash
generating unils, provisions against litigations and contingencies.

Estimates

a) Impact of COVID-19 on the business operations and financial statement of the Company

The outbreak of COVID-19 had disrupted business operations of the Company in earlier periods due to the
lock down restrictions and other emergency measures imposed. The Company's business operations have
continued with certain restrictions in line with guidelines laid down by the respeclive Governments from time
to time. The overall operations of the Company have significantly recovered from the economic slowdown
caused by COVID-19 pandemic and largely reached normalcy.

The Company management has also taken into account the possible impacls of known events, upto the date
of the approval of this Financial Statements, arising from COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying value of the
assels and liabilities as at 31 March 2022, The Company management does not forsee any significant impact
of the of COVID-19 pandemic but will continue to closely monitor any potential impact given the uncertainties
associated with its nature and duration.

{b) Useful lives of various assets

The Company has estimated the useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the
estimated usage of the assel, the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
lechnological changes, etc. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the
assels al each reporting period. This reassessment may resull in change in depreciation and amortisation
expense in the fulure periods,

{c) Current Income Taxes

The tax jurisdictions for the Company is India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision
for income taxes including judgment on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax
assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended
lime periods. The recognition of taxes that are subject to certain legal or economic limits or uncertainties is
assoessed individually by management based on the specific facts and circumstances.




(d) Contingencies

Contingent Liability may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company.
By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncerlain future events occur or fail
to occur. The assessment of the exislence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherenlly involves the
exercise of significant judgments and the use of eslimales regarding the outcome of future events

(e} Accounting for defined benefit plans

In accounting for post-retirement benefits, several statistical and other factors that attempt to anticipate future
events are used to calculate plan expenses and liabilities, These faclors include expected discount rate
assumptions and rate of fulure compensation increases. To estimate these factors, actuarial consultants
also use estimates such as withdrawal, turnover, and mortality rates which require significant judgment. The
actuarial assumptions used by the Company may differ materially from actual results in future periods due
to changing market and economic conditions, regulatory events, judicial rulings, higher or lower withdrawal
rates, ar longer or shorter participant life spans,

(f) Impairment of financial/ non-financial assets

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which an assel's or cash-generating unit's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount to determine the recoverable amount, management estimates
expected future cash flows from each assel or cash generating unit and determines a suitable interest rale
in order to calculals the present value of those cash flows. In the process of measuring expected future cash
flows, management makes assumptions about future operating results. These assumptions relate to future
events and circumstances. The actual resulls may vary, and may cause significant adjustments to the
Company's assels,

In most cases, determining the applicable discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment to
market risk and the appropriate adjustment lo assel-specific risk factors.

v. Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, al fair value at each balance sheet date. (Refer note 32).

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabilily is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the assel in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and besl use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is
available to measurs fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inpuls and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesl level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusled) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). :




vi.

vii.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing calegorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporling
period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assels and liabilities which are
required lo be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Tangible Assets)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if
any, till the date of acquisition/ inslallation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure relaling to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All ather repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements,
either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment ('PPE') is calculated using the siraight line method as per the
eslimated useful lives of assets as below:

[ Asset category Useful life (in years) | Basis of determination of useful lives
Leasehold improvement Over the lease - - B
period

Plant and equipment 15-25 Assessed to be in line with Schedule 1l to the Act
Furnilure and fixtures 10 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act
| Vehicles 8 Assessed to be in line with Schedule Il to the Act
" Office equipment 5 Assessed (o be in line with Schedule Il to the Act
f Computers 3 Assessed to be in line with Schedule |l to the Act
W 15 Management eslimate®

& Useful lives of asset classes determined by management estimate, which are generally lower than those
prescribed under Schedule |l to the Act are supporied by internal technical assessment of the useful lives,

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which asset is ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts. These are
accounted in Statement of profit and loss within Other income/ Other expenseas.

Amortisation on Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis, from the dale they are available for use, over their estimated
useful lives that is a peried of three lo len years,

Asset category Useful life (in years) Basis of determination of useful lives
Brand 5—10 . MHF}%Q@%E@?“”]M& /
Computer software 3-6 /%iff_-‘séet! }oﬂfﬂq‘ line with Schedys

MUNEA




viii. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any coniract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

a, Financial Assets

(i) Initial Recognition

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way lrades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

(ii) Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories;

(iii)

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost if these financial assels are held within a
business model with an objective to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
cantractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets
iz included in finance income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses
arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income {'OCI') if these financial
assets are held within a business model with an objeclive to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows or lo sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchangs gains and losses which are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial asset not measured at amorlised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVPL. In respect
of equily investments (other than for investment in subsidiaries) which are nol held for trading, the Company
has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of such instruments in
Statement of Profit and Loss. Such an eleclion is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument
basis at the time of transition for existing equity instruments/ initial recognition for new equity instruments.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss ("ECL") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. Simplified approach does nol require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recoghises impairment loss allowance based on lifelime ECL at each reparting date, right from its initial
recognilion.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company delermines
that whether there has been a significanl increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has nol increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. I, in a subsequent peried, credit quality of the
instrument improves such thal there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the dillerence between all contractual cash ﬂWattHaTi;Fa. due to the group in acceray
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expeg taml@l:ewé‘ 4 i
J‘,S_"

et



original EIR. Lifetime ECL are the expecled credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results
from default events thal are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual righls lo the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assels and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues (o recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

b} Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability.

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below

Financial liabilities at F\VPL:

Financial liahilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liahilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and other payables are subsequently measured at
amorlised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisalion is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabililies are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substanlially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognilion of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,




c) Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange forward contracts that hedge foreign currency risk associated with highly probable
forecasted are classified as cash flow hedges and measures them at fair value. The effeclive portion of
changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designaled and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the profit or loss and is included in the 'Other income/
expenses' line item. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equily relating to effective portion (as described above) are reclassified to the profit or loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item.

d) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to sellle on a
net basis 1o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously,

ix. Employee Benefits
a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees’ stale insurance, labour
welfare fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and
when services are rendered by the employees. Company's provident fund contribution, in respect of certain
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense lo the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has
no further obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The Company provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan, the liabilities of which is determined based
on valuations, as at the balance sheet date, made by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in
the OCI, in the period in which they occur and is not eligible to be reclassified to the Staternent of Profit and
Loss in subsequent periods, Past service cost is recognised in the Slatement of Profit and Loss in the year
of plan amendment or curlailment. The classification of the Company’s obligation into current and non-
current is as per the actuarial valuation report.

c) Leave entitement and compensated absences

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as shori-term
employee benefit. Leave entitlement, other than shorl term compensated absences, are provided based on
a actuarial valuation, similar to that of gratuity benefit. Re-measuremeni, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of leave enlitlement are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the peried in
which they occur.

d} Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives eltc. are recognised as
expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which the relaled
service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in
which the absences occur,

x. Inventories

Invenlories which comprise of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished geods, stock-in-trade, packing
materials and storas and spares are carried at the lower of cost or nel realisable value. The comparison of
cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Cosl of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cosl of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventorios to their present location and condition. Costs of purt_.h_;lbt.ﬂ m'u'enl{:-ry are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. The cost is determined as follows:




Xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

« Raw Malsrials, Traded goods, Packing Materials and Consumables are valued using the weighted average
method.

» Finished goods and work-in-progress are valued at the cost of raw materials along with fixed production
overheads being allocated on the basis of normal capacity of praduction facilities.

Mel realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimaled cosls
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprises of cash al banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturily of three month or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value,

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker regularly monitors and reviews the operating
result of the whole Company as one segment of "Manufacture, purchase and sale of aleoholic beverages™.
Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”, the Company’s entire business falls under this one
operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheetl
and the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Foreign currency transactions and balances
{a) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reparting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporling currency and the foreign currency at the dale
of the transaction.

(b) Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the closing rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rale at the date of the transaction.

{c) Treatment of Exchange Difference

Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of short-term foreign currency monelary assets
and liabilities of the Company are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at a point in time when control of the goods or services
is transferred o the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 115 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI"), the Company has assumed that recovery of excise duly flows to the Company on its own account
and hence is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether
the goods are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on ils own account, revenue
includes excise duty. However, sales tax/value added tax (VAT), goods and services tax (GST) is not received
by the Company on its own account and is tax collecled on value added to the commodity by the seller on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

(a) Revenue from sale of products

Revenue is recognised when control of the product transfers, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could

affect the customer's acceptance of the producls and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the

amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale ?_[:]gm}ds_
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(b} Interest Income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the
applicable Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

{c) Other Income
Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably.

Income Tax

Income tax comprises of current and deferred income tax, Income tax is recognised as an expense or income
in the Statement of Profil and Loss, except to the extent it relates to items directly recognised in equity or in
OCI.

a) Current Income Tax

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for
allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961, Current income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the laxalion authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

b) Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax is determined by applying the Balance Sheet approach, Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences between the financial stalements' carrying amount
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted tax rates or lax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet
date. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rales is recognised in the period
that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent thal it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities. Current tax assels and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a nel basis, or lo realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously,

Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract, A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange of the consideration.

At the dale of the commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying asset for the lease term and a corresponding lease liability for all the lease
arrangements in which it is a lease, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-lerm leases)
and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated deprecialion and impairment losses, Right-of-use assets
are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorler of the |lease term and
useful life of the underlying assel. The estimated useful life of the assets are determined on the same basis
as those of property, plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounis may nol be recoverable. Caﬁylng amﬁuﬂﬁt: @F Tight-of-use asset igaasillgn down

(?f% MU J ;
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immediately lo its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is grealer than its estimated recoverable
amount.

The lease liability is initially measured al amorlized cost at the present value of the future lease paymenls.
The fulure lease payments are discounted using the interest rale implicit in the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. For a lease with reasonably similar characteristics, the
Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific lo the lease or
the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole,

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

As al each Balance Sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial
asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognised in
the previous periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds ils recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
- In case of an individual asset, at the higher of the assets’ fair value less cost to sell and value in use; and

- In case of cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash generating unit's fair value less cost (o sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the
assel. In determining fair value less cost to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. If no such
transaction can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI. For
such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevanl
amounts are wrillen off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables

A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold
or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially al fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. Trade
receivables ageing has been presented based on the date of transaction. Further, in respect of trade
receivables from Government Corporations, payment are received on lump-sum basis instead of an invoice-
by-invoice settlement. Accordingly, the collections/ realisations from corporation trade receivables are
accounted against the earliest cutstanding invoice.

Trade payables

A payable is classified as a 'trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods purchased
or services roceived in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior (o the end of the financial year which are unpaid. These amounts are
unsacured and are usually settled as per the payment terms stated in the contract. Trade and other payables
are presenled as current liabilities unless payment is nol due within 12 manths after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using Trade payables
ageing has been presented based on (he date of transaction. the EIR method.

xx. Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The acquisition method involves the
recognition of the acqmrees |dentlf|dbie assets and l|ah|l|t:es rncludjng cnntmgent I|db|l|t|es reg _iess of




used as the bases for subseguenl measurement in accordance with the Company's accounting policies.
Goodwill is stated after separating oul idenlifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of
acquisition cost over the fair value of the Company's share of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree at the
date of acquisition. Any excess of identifiable net assets over acquisition cost is recognised in the other
comprehensive income on the acquisition date and accumulated in equity as capital reserve.

Acquisition related costs are accounted for as expenses in the period in which they are incurred and the
services are received

xxi. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares, thal have
changed the number of equity shares oulstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
zarnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of
the outstanding equity shares).

xxii. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Frovisions
(excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required
to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet dale. In case the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed
at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted o reflect the current management eslimates,

The Company recognises a provision in respect of an onerous contract when the expected benefits to be
derived from a contract is lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the
contract. The provision is measured at lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of fulfilling the contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, where a liability
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
xxiii. Exceptional ltems

When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or
incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enlerprise for the period, the nature
and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

Mote 2.2 Recent accounting pronouncements
Recent accounting pronouncement issued but not made effective

Amendment to Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind
AS 16 which specifies that an entily shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and uquipmenl any
procecds received from selling items produced while the entity is prci,w,rmg tt1@aqset for its intendgd=gsey(for

&

example, the proceeds from selling samples produced when testing a ;rig;hmt: tu:;:eb il il is functioning




Amendment to Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 37 which specifies that the cosl of
fulfilling a contract comprises: the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Amendment to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 103 and has added a new exception
in the standard for liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Amendment to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

MCA vide notification dated 23 March 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 109 which clarilies that which fees
an entity should include when it applies the “10%’ tesl in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. An
entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf.
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Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial staternents as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amount in F millien, unless otherwlse stated)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Mote 5  Loans

Naon-current

| pans fo employas ) 0.17 020
Total non-current loans 07 020
Current

Loans o cmployee (.08 0.07
Total current loans .08 0.07
Total loans 0.25 0.7

Break-up of security details

Loans receivable considered good - securad - A
Loans receivable gond - unsecured 0.25 0.27
Loans receivable which have signilicanl increasa in credit risk 5 s
| oans receivable credil impairad - L
Tatal ) 0.25 0.27

Note &  Other financial assets
Non-current

Governmenl granls recaivable 1.14 -
Securily deposits 4.82 316
Banks deposits with maturity of more than 12 manihs 0.28 -
(pladged wilh excisa authoritics or earmarked against bank guarantess taken)
Total non-current financial assets 6.24 3.18
Currant
Govarnmenl grants reccivable B.78 -
Securily deposils 0.52 0.54
Interest accrued on bank deposits 1.46 1.65
Total current financlal asscts 10.76 2.19
Total other financial assets 17.00 5.35
Mote 7 Income tax asscls
1. The following table provides the details of income tax assests as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
Income tax assels o 1.39
Total Income tax assets ~ 2.1 1.38
il. The gross movement in the current income tax assets is as follows:
Income fax assets at the beginning 1.39 1.26
Income lax paid e 0.72 0.13
Income tax assets at the end 211 1.39
fi. Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises:

Year endod Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Curranl lax exponses = o
Deforred 1ax expenses = =
Income tax cxpenses (net) B S

iii. A& reconciliation of the Income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate
to the profit before income taxes is as below:

Profil befora Income tax 16,99 26,74
Applicable income tax rate 2517% 26.00%
Computed expected tax expense 4.28 6.95
Fffacl of expenses nol allowad for lax purpose 0.05 0.03

Fevarsal ol Delerred lax credit of earlier years
Effaet of doferred tax assets not created on loss in earlier years (Refer Mole 7.1 balow)

Income tax cxpense charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss




Artizan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Amount in ¥ million, unless otharwise stated)

Iv. Components of deferred income tax assets and llablllties arising on account of temporary differences are:

(a) Deferred tax liabilities

As at

Asal

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

- Tiring dilference on tangible assets depreciation a.22 -
3.22 -
(b} Deferred tax assets
- Business loss [ unabsorbed degracialion 3.22 =
322 &
Deferred tax assets (net) - =,
v, Movement in components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities on  Deferred tax assets D:;zg;dﬂt:x
timing difference on on business loss | E—— Total
tanglble asscts unabsarbed P
d iali d atl allowable on
epreciation epreclation payment basis
(A} (B} (c) D={A)-(B)-C)
Al T April 2020 3554 35.22 0.32 -
{Chargad) ! credited
- to prafit or loss (35.54) [35.22) (0.32}
At 31 March 2021 = - 5 -
(Charged) / credited
- to profit or loss 3.22 3.22 -
At 31 March 2022 322 3.22 -

Mote: 7.1 In the absence of convincing evidence of Tulure laxable profits against which unused tax losses (including unabsorbed depreciation] can be utilised,
the Company has recognizod deferred tax assets in respect of the below mentioned lemporary differences only to the extent of deferred {ax liabililies.

Loss Incurred in Assessment year Loss Carried Forward
Business Loss Unabsorbad
Depreciation

201213 - oAr
2013-14 - T
2014-15 - [T
201514 - £.25
201617 - 5,40
201718 172 4,97
201819 11.39 3,78
2018-20 2044 .04
2020-21 24.90 210

Mote 8 Other assets
Neon-current

Balances with government authorilies
Prepaid gratuity (Refer note 31}
FPrepaid expansos

Total other non-current assats

Current

Advance to supplisrs
Less: Impairment allowance (Refer nole 26)

Balancas with government authoritics

Prepaid expenses
Total other current assets

Total other assets

Carried Forward Valld Upto
Business Loss

Unabsorbed
Depreciation

Indefinila
Indelinila
Indefinita
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinite
Indefinila
Indefinila

As at
31 March 2022

As oat
31 March 2021

4,75 ¥.08

- 0.4z

0.01 0.0z

476 B4z

123.485 134.59
(123.72) (122.36)

013 12.23

£ 0.03

0.85 0.36

0.948 12.67
574 21.04




Artlsan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial staternents as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

{Amaount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 3 Inventories

As at

As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Wark-in-progress { Semi-finished gaoc 57.25
Finished goods 138 .
Stock-in-trade [including goods in ransit ¥ 11,68 million (31 March 2021: 2 572 million) ] 49.00 86.13
Consumables, stores and spares 1.99 -
Packing materials 5.93 -
Total Inventorics 115.53 8613
MNote 10 Trade receivables
Trade receivablos 188.02 210.37
Total trade receivables 188.02 210,37
Breakup of sccurity details:
Trade receivables considerad gaod - secured = =
Trade receivables considered gaod - unsecurcd 188.02 210,37
Trade receivahlas which have significant increase in credit fisk - -
Trade receivahlas - credil impaircd 7.36 6.27
195.38 21664
| ess: Impairment allowance:
Trade receivables which have signilicant increase in credit risk = =
Trade receivables - credil impairad [7.38) {6.27)
Total Trade receivables 188.02 2037

Mote 10.1  Trade receivables are nan-inleresl bearing and generally on terms 30-90 days.

Mot 10,2 There are no frade recelvablos due from any directar ar any officer of the Company, either severally or joinily with any other persan, ar from any
firms r private companies in which any director is & partner, a dirsclor or a momber.

Mote 10.3 Trade receiveable ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from transaction date

As at 31 March 2022 -
Mot due LS i G ancaittias] 1-2 years  2-3 Years W v Tatal
months year yoars
(i} Undisputed trade receiveables- Considered good - 129.24 1.46 46.57 5.05 270 165.02
(i) Undisputed trade receivables which have - - - - - - -
signilicant Increase in credit fisk
(i) Undispuiad trade recaivables - credit impaired - 1.61 0.01 0.54 0.048 0.03 229
{iv) Disputed trade receivahles-considerad good - - - - - -
(v} Dizputed trade receivables which have - - - - - _ -
significant increase in cradil risk
{vi) Disputed trade receivahles - cradil impaired - - - . 039 468 5,07
- 130.85 1.47 47.11 8.54 741 195.38
Mate: Theno are no unbilled dues for the reparling period
Outstanding for following periods from transaction date
As at 31 March 2021 ot due Less than & 6 months-1 1-2years 2.3 Years More than 3 Total
‘months year years ey
{ih Undisputed frade receiveables- Considered good - 133.71 48,85 26.08 1.06 (.66 210,37
{ii) Undisputed trade receivables which have - - - . & L =
slgnificant increase in credil risk
{iii} Undisputed trade receivables - cradil impaired - 0.81 020 016 0.0 - 1.27
{iv) Disputed trade receivables-considared good - - - - - - -
{v) Disputed trade receivables which have 2 = P! = s o
significant increase in cradil risk
(i} Dispuled trade reccivables - credit impaired I - (.59 1.13 2.88 5.00
- 134.52 49.15 2743 2,20 3.64 H6.64

Mote: Thers zre no unbilled duss for the reporting period




Artlsan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant acceunting policies and other explanatory information to the financlal statements as at and for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Az al Az al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Note 11 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances wilh banks in current accounts 7.41 325
Cash on hand 0.05 %
Total cash and cash equivalents 7 a6 3_2-5—_

Mote: 11.4 There are ne repatriation restriclions wilh regards Lo cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporling period and prior pericds.

Mote 12  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis

Bank depasils wilh malurity of more than 3 months but less than 12 manlhes 40.71 60.71

(hald as margin money of sccurity against bormowings, guaranies and alher
Total bank halances other than cash and cash eqguivalents 40,71 6071

Space infantionally lelft blank




Artlsan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Armount in T millien, unless otherwlse stated)
As al Az al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 13 Equity share capital

Authorised share capital
360,000,000 Equity shares of £ 10 each {Refer note below) 360.00 300,00
(31 March 20021 30,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

Total autherised share capital 3s0.00 _ A00.00

Mofe : Pursuant to the resolulion passed by s Buard of Direclars of the Company at the mesting held on 30 July 2021, the Company has increased tha Aulhorised
share capital fram F 300 million comprising of 30,000,000 Equily Shares of 10 each T 360 million comprising of 36,000,000 Equity Shares of 10 each,

Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital:
3,53,50,000 Equily shares of T 10 each fully paid up 353.50 293.50
(21 March 2021: 29,350,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each)

Total issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital 353.50 203.560
. Reconclliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Murmbrer T million
As at 1 April 2020 2.9:3,60,000 203.60
Issued during the year = .
As at 31 March 2021 2.93,50,000 293,50
Izzued durirg Lhe year [Rafer note 13()] 60,00,000 G000
As at 31 March 2022 3,53,50.000 353.50

. Terms [ rights attached to equity shares:

The Gompany has only one class of equily shares having a par valug of 2 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is enfitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject Lo lhe approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeling, excapl inlerim dividend, il any.

I the event of liquidation of lhe Company, the holders of equily shares will be entifled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferantial
amounls, The distibution will be in proporion to the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders.

. Shareholding of more than 5%: As at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021

Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards Private 100,00% 3,53,50,000 100.00% 2,83 50,000
Limiled) - Holding Company

As per records of The Company, including its register of sharehalders { members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the
above sharehaolding reprasents both legal and benelicial ownership of shares.

. Bonus shares [ buy back [ shares for consideration other than cash issued during past five years:

-

(i} Aggregate number and class of shares altolled as [ully paid up pursuant to contracts without payment being recefved in cash - Mil
(i} Aggregate nember and class of shares allatted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - N8
{iii} Aggregate numbsr and class al shares bought back - il

. Dwring fha curranl year, he Company has issued &,000,000 equity shares at a face value of ¥ 10 sach.

. Shareholding of promoters:

Az on 31 March 2022

Particulars Name of the promoters No. of shares % hald Mo, of shares %% held % change
al the at the end of during the year
beglnning of the period
the perlod*
Equily shares of 2 10 cach  Sula Vineyards Limited {Formedy Sula Vineyards 3,53,50,000 100.00%, ZH350,000 100.00% 0.00%
fully paid Private Limiled) - Holding Compainy

As on 31 March 2021

Particulars Mame of the promoters Ma. of shares % hield Mo. of sharas % held % change
at the at the end of during the year
beginning of the period
thie period® -
mty shares of 2 10each  Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula Vineyards 2,93.50.000 100.00% 2803, 50,000 100.00% 0.00%

fully paid Privale Limiled) - Halding Company




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory informaticn to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise staled)
hs at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Note 14 Borrowings
Mon-current borrowings

Securgd

Term loan from banks (Refer noe 14.1) 117.32 -

Unsecured

Loan from halding company | Refer notes 14.2 balow and 33) 279.70 234.39
387.02 234.39

Less:Currenl malurily of long-term borrowings (15.26) -

Total non-current borrowings 3B1.76 231439

Current borrowings

Secured

Loans from bank

- Werklng capital demand loans (repayable on demand) (Raler nole 14.3) 25.00

- Currant maturities of long-larm borrowings 15.26 T

- Buyer's Credit {Refer note 14.4) - S0.62

Total current borrowings 40,26 Hl62

Taotal borrowings ([+11) 422.02 265.01

Hote 14.1: Details of securlty and terms of repayment of non-current borrowings

Mutmmrhior ok Amaount par Rate of
Particulars  installmants insiallinGnt Interest Soecurlty
Dutstandirg e ;

Hupes term 16 Quanerly F 0,20 millian 8.05%, First pari passu on entine property, plant and equipment, current assets, including Trade receivables

loan inslalimenls bedh prasent and lulure.

Fupee term 16 Quarterly 7 0,30 millian B.45%  First par passu on entire proparty, plant and cquipment, current assets, incleding Trads recaivables

loan Installments belh present and future

Rupse term 16 Cuarierly 7 1,83 million £.95%  First pari passu on entire proporly, plant and equipment, current assets, including Trade recoivablos

loan installments bioth present and future.

Rupse ferm 16 Quarlery F 5.7 milkan £.95%  Firsl pari passe on enline propeny, plant and equipment, current assats, including Trade receivables

loan inzfallments hoth present and fulure.

Mote 14,2 Detalls of unsecured non-current borrowings

Loan from Sula Vineyards Limiled (formerly Sula Vineyards Private Limited) carries inleresl of 7.80% p.a. (31 March 2021; 8.15% pa.).

Mote 14.3 Details of security and terms of repayment of current borrowings

Working capilal demand loans are repayable on demand. They carry inlerest rate of 8.60% pa. (31 March 20270 Mil) and are sucured by first pari passu on entire
Property, Plant and Equipment and curent assels, including frade receivables bolh present and (ulue.

Mote 14.4 Detalls of security and terms of repayment of current borrowings
Buyer's credit carried an efeclive interest rate of Mil (31 March 2021: 7.35% p.a). and was ropayable in 180 days. This was secured by first charge on currcnl assets

and colletral of 0.4x fixed deposits placed with ihe bank. This has been fully repaid during the previous year.

Mote 14.5 Met debt reconciliation
An analysis of net debts and the movement in net debd for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
{#) Cash and cash equivalanls (7.46) [3.25)
(B) Current borrowings 40,26 h0G2
(] Mon-current borrowings 3176 £34.34
(D) Inlerest payabde 0.96 2245
Met debt (E) = (A-B-C-I . 415.52 20421
Olher assots Liabilities from financing actlivitios Total
Cn::s?lnd Mo sy Lurring Intarest payable
borrowings  borrowlings (E J=(A-B-C-0)
cguivalents (B) () (o)
i)
Het debt as at 1 April 2020 113.35) 27573 - 48,02 310,40
Cash flows (net) 10,10 (41.34) 50,26 - 158.02
Exchange rala Muclealions - - 0.36 - 0,36
Interest expense - - - 26.03 26.03
Interest paid - - - (5160} (51,60
Met delit 35 at 31 March 2021 [2.25) 234,39 50,62 2245 a04.21
Cash flows (nel) (4.08) 162.63 [25.62) - 132,93
Addilion due 1o business combination { Refer nota 1) (0.13) - . - [0.13)
Interest expansa - - - 31.96 .96
Interest pald - - - (G3da) (63.45)

Met debt as at 31 March 2022 |7.46) 387.02 25.00 0.96 415.52




Arlisan Spirits Private Limited

summary of slgnificant accounting policies and other explanalory Information to the financial statements as al and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 14.6: Details of stock statement submitted to bank and books of accounts where borrowings have been availed based on security of current assets

(% in millian)
Amount
Amount as  reported in
uarter Mame of Bank Particulars per books  the quarterly A.muu nt_c'f Reason fer material variances
ended difference
of accounts return/statem
ent
Ireentary 8513 .24 5,69 The difference is primarily on acceund of goods in transii includad in
March the: books of accounts subsequantly.
2021 ICICIBank 4 e Receivables 2037 22402 {13,65) The difference iz due o Ihe submissions to the Banks were made
before financial reporting closure process
Inventary 57.63 57.63 - -
A IGICI Bank  Trade Receivables 184.15 18657 (2.42) The difference is dus 1o the submissions 1o the Banks were mads
= belore financial reporting closure procass
Inventory 106,54 103.52 3.02 The difference is due fo ihe submizsions Lo the Banks were mads
Soplember , bedore financial reparting closure process
2021 SOMBank oo Receivables 101,25 189.92 1.33 The differance is dus lo the submissions 1o the Banks wers mads
before financial reparing closure process
Inveniory 11804 115665 {0.E1) The differance is due to the submissions o the Banks weare made
December SEM Bank hefare financial reporiing closure process
201 * Trade Recaivablas 18971 211.04 (11.33) Tha difference is duc Lo the submissions to the Banks wera made
kefare financial reporing closure process
I : Inventony 115.53 115.53 -
March 2022 S0M Bank 18800 e

Trade Recelvables

Mete: For the quarters ended 30 June 2020, 20 Seplomber 2020, 31 December 2020; the Group submilled guarlerly repons 1o banks based on internal operational
reporls since e companies were not required fo prapare financial slalemenls on a quartery basis. Accordingly, Group management has carred cut reconciliation of
the statements submilled 1o banks with the books of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021,

Note 15 Lease liabilities

Non Current

Currenl
Total Lease liabilities

Note 16 Other financial liabilities

Non-current

Inleresl accreed but not dus to related pary (Refer nole 33)

Tofal non-current financial labilitles

Current
Inlerest accnsed and dus
Interest accrued but nol dus
Chhers
- Liabiliey for capital goods
- Securily deposil
" - Dus lo employoes

- Purchase consideralion payable lowards business combination {Refer nola 41)

Total current financial liabilities
Total other financial labilitles

Oiher finarcial liabdites camed 3t amortised cost
Oihear financial liabililies caried al FYTPL

Note 17 Provisions

Non-current

Provision lor employes benefits {Refer note 31}
- Grrafuity

Total non-currant provisions

Current

Provision for employes henefits (Refer note 31}
- Compensaled absences
Total current provisions

Total provisions

As at Az al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

0.52 -
0.61 e
1.33 -

2 22.00

= 22.00
0.20 0.10
0.06 0.36
2.34 .
376 0.58
145 01.55

10.00 L

1871 1.50

18.71 TAER

1871 23.08
0.85 -
0.85
0.53 -
0.53 =
1.38

T
MUMBAL %

*
A2




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
[Amount in ¥ million, unless olherwise staled)
As at As al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Nole 18 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micra enferprises and small enterprises (Refer note 182 below) 0.83 0.
Tolal oulslanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enlo: prises 833 H4.68
Total trade payables 3016 05,20

MNote 18.1 : Trade payables arse non-nterest bearing and are normally sellled 2= per the paymant lerms slaled in the contract
Mote 18.2 : Dues to micro, small and medium enlerprises 1o the extent information available with the Company is givan below:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(&) Tha principal ameunl and the interest due therean remaining unpaid 1o supplier as al the end of year:
Principal amount due fo micro and small enferprises 0.83 0,51
- Inferest dus .07 0.07
() The amount of interest paid by the buyer in lerms of seclion 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the -
paymanl madea Lo the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounling year.

{2} The amounl of interest dus and payable for the perod of delzy in making payment {which have boen paid bul beyond the 0.04

appointed day during the year) bul withoul adding the inlerest specified ender the MSMED Act, 2006,

{d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 0,11 007
(&) The amount of furlher interest remalning due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil such dalo when the interest 0.20 .09

dues as above are aclually paid lo the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deduclible expendilure wnder seclion
73 of the MSMED Act, 2000
Mote 18.3 : Trade payable ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2022
Qutstanding from following period from the fransaction date

Particulars Mot due Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 Tatal
Dues WEr years S—
(i) MSME - 5 (065 0.11 .05 - 0.82
ifi) Cthers 726 20.59 1.32 .08 0.06 3633
(iii} Disputed duss- MSML - - - 5 : X -
(iv) Disputed dues- Others E : - i H z a
z 7.26 3027 1.43 0,14 0.06 3016

As at 31 March 2021
Dutstanding from following period from the transaction date

Unbilled Less than 1 More than 3

Particulars Mot due o 1-2 Years 2-3 years Total
ues year il YOArS

(i) MEME ~ = 011 0.26 0,12 0.2 Q.51
(i) Cthers - 5.3 35.74 2322 008 n.32 G4, 69
(i) Dispuled dues- MSME = E: - + r -
(iv) Disputed dues- Olhars - . - N z T : -

- 5.33 3585 2348 _ 0.20 0.34 65.20
Mote 19 Other current liabilities

As at Az al

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Slalutery dues payable 12.43 16.81

Total other current liabilitics . 12.43 18.81




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amount in ¥ milllon, unless otherwise stated)

Year endad Yeaar andod
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Mote 20 Revenue from operations
{a) Sale of products (including excise duty) 403.09 450.65
{b) Sale of Sarvices 10.92
(o) Other operating revenues 19.24 .00
Taotal revenue from operations 433.25 459.55

MNote 20.1: Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracls with Customers
(&) Based on nature of product or service
(&) Sale of products

- Manufactured goods 43.06 N
- Traded goods 2 36003 450,65
403.09 450.6%

(b} Sale of Services 10.92 -
() Other oparating revenues

- Governmenl grant 9.92 -

- Provisions no longer reguired written hack 4,68 RE-1]

- Othears 4.64 5.34
Total revenue from operations 433.25 45055

(B) Based on timing of revenue recognition

Products fransfzred atl a point of ime 403.09 450.65
Services transferred at & point of ime 10.82 -

The amounls recelvable from customers become due afler expiry of credit period which on an average rangas botwoen 30-90 days. There is no

financing component in any fransaction with the customers. The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts
entered for sale of goods are for a shorter duration, All conlracls entared by the company are fized-price confracls. Further, the Company's entire
business falls under one operational segment of manufacture, purchase and sale of aleoholic beverages (Refer note 37).

Reconciliation of revenua from operation with contract price as required by Ind AS 115

Contract price 491.68 468.97
Less: llems offset against revenue from customers (88.59) [18.32)
403.09 A50.65

Nete 20.2: The following table gives delalls in respect of contract revenues generaled lrom the top customer and top 5 customers for the year

Revenue from lop customear 85.84 170,32
Revenue from top five customers 223.25 aB0.62

Faor the year ended 31 March 2022, two (2) [31 March 2021: three (3)] customers, individually accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue.

MNote 21 Other income

{a) Interasl income

- on financial assels carriad al amortized cost 0.04 0.03
- an bank deposits 2.67 1.54
- on tax retund 0.38 -
- an loans o employess o2 0.08
311 1.95
{b) Exchange gain (net) 0.21 -
{c) Other operating income:
- Insurance claim 0.02 .
- Miscellancous income - .10

Total other income i 3.34 205




Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31

March 2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 22 Cost of materials consumed

(&) Stock &t beginning of the year
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

{b) Add: Purchases
- Raw materials
- Packing materials

{c) Less: Stock at the end of the yvear
- Raw matarials
- Packing materials

{d) Cosl of materials consumed {a+b-c)
- FRaw materials
- Packing materials

Total cost of materials consumed
Mote 23 Changes In inventories of finished goods, wark-in-progress and stock-in-trade

(a) Opaning stock
- Finished goods
- Work in progress
- Stock-in-rade

{b) Closing stock
- Finishad goods
- Work in progress
- Stock-in-trads

() Increase [ (Decrease) in excise duty on finished goods
Total changes in inventaries of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade (a-b+c)

Mote 24 Employee banefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Coniribution lo provident and other fund (Refer note 31)
Gratuity (Refar nota 31)

Staff welfara
Total employee benefits expense

Mote 25  Selling and distribution expenses

Sales Promotion
Commission
Total selling and distribution expenses

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

- 570
4 5,70
52.01 -
14.39 -
66,40 -
5.93 -
5483 -
52.01 5.70
B.46 -
G0.47 5,70
' 2.08
86.13 43.07
86.13 45.15
1.36 -
57.25 -
43.00 86.13
107.61 B6.13
0.11 -
(21.37) {40.98)
13.75 4.58
0.61 0,15
0.55 0.01
0.16_ :
15.07 4.71
18.63 21.16
2.64 0.11
21.27 127




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as al and for the year ended 31
March 2022

{Amaunt in F million, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Mote 26 Other expanses 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Consumakbles, stores and spares consumead 2.43 0.05
Power and fual 1.87 -
Repairs and maintenance - Building 1.12 =~
Repairs and maintenance - ofhers 359 =
Rates and taxes 15.16 G6.70
Insurance 0.22 012
Security charges 1.07 =
Travelling and conveyanca 0.29 0.01
Rent { Refer Mote 33 ) 6.17 4,899
Auditor remuneration:
- audil laes 0.94 0.59
- tax audit tees 012 012
- carlification leas 0.04 0.04
- reimbursement of expenses 0.01 5
Legal and professional loas 4.50 0.3
Dircctor gitling fees (Reter note 33) - 0130
Restaurant cxponses 8.03 3
Freight and handling charges 9,24 6.54
Impairmenl allwance on financial and non-financial assets (Refer notes 8 and 10) 245 1.27
Exchange loss (net) - 391
|Lo=s on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) - 2.54
Frinting, stafionary, postaga and lelephone expenses 0.29 0.1
Miscellansous 0.8y 0.22
Total other expenses 58.28 25.02
Mote 27 Finance costs
Interast on:
- lease liability 0.09 -
- loans from bank 1015 207
- cash credit facilities 117
- loan from holding company (Rafer note 33) 20.51 23.88
- alhears 0.13 0.08
' 32.05 26.03
Cther borrowing costs 4.48 228
Total finance costs _38.53 28.32
Mote 28 Depreciation expense
Depreciation on tangible assels (Refor note 3) 7.01 1.83
Depracitaion on Right of use assets (Refer note 34) 0.45 -
Amarlisalion of intangible assets (Refer note 4) ) 4.86 =
Total depreciation and amortisation 12.32 1.83
Mote 2%  Earnings per shara (EP53)
Year endad Year ended
Bagic and diluted EFS 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A Profit computation for basic earnings per share of 3 10 each
Met profit as per the Statement of Profil and Loss available for equity shareholders (2 million) 16.98 26.74
B. Weighlad average number of equity shares for EPS computation (Nos.) 3,21,77,397 2,93,50,000
C. EPS - Basic (%) 0.53 0.09
- Diluted EPS (F) 0.53 0,09
MNote 30 Contingent liabilities and commitments As at Az al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

A Contingant liabilities

{i} Guarantees issued by banks on bahall of the Company 29,30 28.41

(i) Provident Fund

Based on he judgement by the Honorable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is not determinzahle at present, in
vigw of uncertainty on the applicabilily of the judgement to the Company with respect to timing and the components of ils compensation structure. In
absence of further clarfication, the Company has been legally advised lo awail furthor developments in this matter to reasonably assess the
implications on its financial statemenls, iFany.

Mote:

The Company does not expect any oulllow of sconomic resources in respect of the above,

B. Commitments

i} Capital commitment (net of advances) 0.74




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
{Amount in F milllon, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 31; Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 13 "Employee Benefits'

I

a)

b

[+

d

=

—

)

Defined benefit abligations - Gratuity (funded)

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 under which an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled

to specific benefits, The level of banefits provided depends on the member's langth of service and salary at retirement z2ge.

Changes in defined benefit obligations

Present value of the abligation as at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Remcasurments - Net aclurial loss

Bencfits paid

Liability assumed on account of group ransfer

Prezsent value of the obligation as at the end of tha year

Changes In falr value of plan assets of the gratulty plan
Plan assets al the beginning of the year

Interest income

Aciual return on plan assets (excluding interest income)
Bensfits paid

Employer contributions

Femeasurements - Mel actuarial gain

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

Exponses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Intorest expensed{income) {nel)

Currant scrvice cost

Total

Remeasuramant loss/{gain) recognised in OCI

Femeasuramant - Met actuarial gains on defined banefit obligations
Remeasuremeant - Mot actuarial gains on planned assets
Adjustment 1o recognize the effect of asset ceiling

Total

Movement in asset ceiling

Opening value of asset cailing

Interest on opening balance of assat ceiling
Remeasurements due 1o changas in surplus { (deficit)
Closing value of asset ceiling

*ropresents amount less than 10,000

Actuarial assumptions
Dizcount rate

Salary escalation rate
Mortality rate

Attrition rate :

- For ages #1-30 years
- For ages 31-40 years
- For ages 41-50 years
- For ages 51-57 years

31 March 2022

31 March 2041

0.72 0.4z
0.43 0.2
0.19 0.3
0.89 0.13
{0.27) [0.30)
2.7 0.43
4,67 0.72
147 0.82
0.08 (.05
0.02 2
[0.27) (0.30)
282 0.50
3.82 117
012 (0.02)
0.43 0.03
0.55 0.01
0.89 013
(0.06) (0.25)
0.83 {0.12)
0.03 .27
- .02
{0.06] (0.26)
{0.03) 0.03
As at Az at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
6.90% 6.95%
12.00% 11.00%
Indian Assured Indian Assured Livas
Lives Mortality Pelartality
(2012-2014) {(2012-2014)
Ultimate Ultimate
3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a.
5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
3.00% p.a. 3.00% p.a.
0.00% p.a. 0.00% p.a.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, lake account of inflation, seniorily, promofion and other relevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
{(Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

aj

h

Investment datails of Plan Asscts

Major Categories of Plan Assets: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Insurer managed funds 100% T00%,

The Gratuity Scheme is inveslad in a Mew Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Plan Policy offarad by Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) and Adilya
Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Limited. The information on the allocation of the fund inlo major asset classes and expected return on each
major asset are not readily avallable. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on market expectations, at the beginning of the period,
for returns over the entire life of the related obligation.

Cluantities sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below:
Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumplion used for the valuation of the defined benefil
abligation, keeping all other acluarial assumplions constant. The significant actuarial assumptions are discount rate and salary escalation rate.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

0.50% increase

Discount rate {0.35) (0.035)

ii. Salary escalation rate 0.33 0.05
0.50% decrease

Discount rale 0.39 0.06

Salary escalation rate (0.32) {0.05)

a)

)

b

The sensilivily analysis prosented above may not be representative of the aclual charge in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that tha
changs in assumpticn would occur in izolation of one another as the assumplions may be correlated.

As at Az al
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation

Within the next 12 months 012 0.0z
Between 2 and b years 0.70 0.09
Between 6 and 10 years 0.73 0,08
Beyond 10 years 14.92 217
Total expected payments 16.47 247

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company also has cartain defined contribution plans. The contribullons are made to registered provident fund administerad by the
Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount conlributed and it has no further contractual nor any construclive obligation.
The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plans are as follows.

Year ended Yeoar ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:
{i} Contribution to provident fund 0.52 015
{ii) Contribution to ESIC 0.09 -
0.61 .15

The leave obilgations cover the Company's liability for sick and privilege leaves. The amount of provision with respect 1o leave obligation is ¥ 0.53
million (21 March 2021 : Nil} is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer selllement for any of these
obligations, Howeaver, basad on past experience, the Company does nol expect all employees to take the full amount of accrusd leave or require
payment within the next 12 months. The expense recognised during the year lowards leave encashment is 2 0.54 million (31 March 2021: Nil)

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current! non-current classification
Gratuity
Mean-current 0.85 7
Mean-current (prepaid gratuity) = {0.42)
0.85 (0.42)

Compensated absences
Currant
Mon-currant
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as 3 and for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Amount in ¥ millien, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 32 Financial instrumants

The fair value of the financial 2ssets are included ot amounls af which e instruments could be sxchanged in a current transaction belween willing parfies ather than in a forced
or liquidation sala. The following melhods and assumplions were used to estimate the fair value:

{a) Fair value of cash and shart term deposits, trade and other shorl leon meeeivables, frade payables, other current liabilities, approdmate thei camdng amounts largely due to

the shor-term maturifies of these instrumonls

() Financial instnaments with fized and varizble interast rates are ovalualed by lhe Goempany hased on parameters such as interest rates and individual credil worthingss of the
counterparty. Based on this evalualion, allowonces are laken o accownl far the expected losses of thess receivables.

Fimancial instruments by catogory

The carrying valus and fair vakue of financial instrumeants by categones as at 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Particulars Refer note Amortised  Financial assefs | Financial assets/ Dearivative Total
cost liabilities at fair liabilities at fair valee  instruments in carrying
value through through OCI hedging value
profit or loss ralationship
Assels: —
Loans 5 025 - 0n.25
Orthers financial asseks I 1700 - gl 7 v.nn
Trade receivables 10 188.02 = - 188.02
Cash and cash cguivalenis 11 746 - ¥.46
Hank balancas other than cash and cash equivalenls 1z 40.71 - = = 40.71
Liakilitias:
Borrowings 14 422.02 - - 422.02
Lesase Liabdlitles 14 1.33 1.33
b linancial liabilies 16 18.71 - 18.71
Trade payables 14 3946 = & 39,16
The carrying value and [z value of inancial instruments by categories as al 31 March 2021 wee a5 follows:
Particulars Rafer note Amaorfised  Financlal assets!  Financial assets! Deriviafive Total
cost liabilitics at fair  llabllitles at fair value  instruments in - carrying
valua through through OCI hedging valua
profit or loss relatlonship
Aszets:
| o 5 027 - - - 0.27
Crihers financial asseis G 5,45 - - 5,38
Trade recalvanles 10 210,37 - - - 21037
Cash and cash equivalonts 11 3.25 - - 329
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents 172 G0 - - - 60.71
Liabilities:
Barrowings 14 236,60 - - 48,41 ahm
Cmer financial isbifties 16 2368 - - 23.68
Trade payables 10 B5,#) - - fh20




Artisan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information to the financial statemonis as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

{(Amount in F million, unlass otherwise stated)

B Impact of hedging activities
The Company uses foreign uxchange forward confracts 1n hedge against the foreign currency sk of highty peobable USD borrowings. Such derivative linancil inslrements ane

govamed by e Cenpany's policies approved by the Board of Direcloes, whish provide wiitten principles on the use of such instruments congistent with the Company's rizk
management strategy. AS the value of the derivative instiement generally changes in response to the value of the hedged ilem, the economic relationship is established.

a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting in the Company's balance sheet

Carrylng amount Chonge In
N value of
Change in Fair diacl
Myl : Hedge Strike  value of hadging .he i
value: Jn ol ol A ralin pricel rate instrument e
uso BAssols Liabilities as the
basis for
recognlsin
‘As at 31 March 2022
Gash flow hedge 5 - I E i : 2
As at 31 March 2021
Cash flow hedge - Forelgn currency forward controct
USDHIMNE 6,350,000 - 4841 Fubruary 2027 1o iH 73.83 0.35 .21

Iy 20021

b) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting In the Company's profit or (loss) and ofher comprehensive income

Ghange in the value
of the hedging

instrument Hedge inelfectivensss
Type ofhedge recognised In other recognisad in profil or loss
comproehensive
income

For the year ended 31 March 2022
Cash flow hedge - o

Far the year ended 31 March 2021
Cash flow hedne (0.21) {0.14)




Artisan Spirits Private Limited

Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March

2022
{Amount in ¥ million, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 33 Disclosure in accordance with Ind-AS 24 Related Party Disclosurcs

A, Names of related parties and nature of ralationship

Mame of the entify

(a) Ultimate Parent Company {(having control over the entity)

Varlinvest Group SA

{b) Holding Company
Sula Vineyards Limited (Formerly Sula vinayards Limited)

(b) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Chailanya Rathi
Meeraj Sharma
Bittu Vargphese
Chetan Desai
Monit Dhavale

B. Nature of Transactions

Transactions with related parties:

Sula Vineyards Limited
- Interest expense
- Fanl expanse
- Purchase of goods
- Purchase of property, plant and equipment
- Sale of producis
- Sale of property, plant and equipment
- Loan taken
- Loan repaid
- Repayment of interest
- Reimbursameant of expansas
- Corporate Guarantee issued on behalf of the Company

Progessive Alcobev Distributors Privata Limited
- Sale of products

Chetan Desal
- Direclor Sitling Fees

C. Qutstanding balances.

Progressive Alcobev Distributors Private Limited
Trade receivable

Sula Vineyards Limited
Loans payahle
Imtarast accrued but not due

Sula Vineyards Limited
Corporate Guarantee issued on behalf of the Company

Director

Director (appointed w.e.f 17 September 2020, resigned woe T & October 2021)

Director

Dircctor (resigned w.e.f. 02 December 2020)

Director (appointed w.ef 11 October 2021)

Year ended Year endad

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
20.51 23,88
0.39 0.24
39.61 64.28

6.T4 -
48.66 9.73
0.01 0.9
504.28 517.26
45897 558.60
40.54 AT.B3
173.76 T6.43
159.57 75,04
e 36.71
- 0.30

As at Az at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

- 16.86
273,70 23439
- 22.09
174.63 78.04




Artlsan Spirits Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Mote 34 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's activilies expose it to a variety of financial risks: marked risk, credit sk and liguidity risk. The Company's focus is to foreses The unpredictability
of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse allects on ils linancial pedomance.

Market risk

Markel risk is the sk that the fair value of future cash flows of a linancial instrument will fluctuate bocause of changes in market prices. Markel risk comprisos
lhree typas of sk interest rate risk, currency risk and ofther price risk, such as eguily price rsk. Major financial instruments affected by markel risk includes
loans and borrowings.

. Interest rate risk

Imerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash lews of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel inlarest rates. The
Company’s cxpostnz to the risk of changes in markel interast rales ralales primarily 1o the Company's total debt obligations with floating inleresl rales.

Intercst rate sensitivity
Ihe fellowing lable demanstrates the sensitivity to a reasanably possible changs in interest rates on that portion of lpans and borrowings affected. Wilh all olhar
variables held constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affeclad through The impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
) 0.5 % 0.5 % decrease 0.5 % increase 0.5 % decrease
increase
Impacl an Prodil bafore tax .71 (0.71) = -

The assumed movemenl in basis polnts for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is basad on lhe currenlly absarvable market environment, showing a significantly
higher volatilily than in prior years.

. Foreign currency risk
The Company does not have signilicant oulslanding balances in foreign currency and consequently the Company's exposure Lo forcign cxchange risk is
less. The Company evaluates exchangs rale exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows establizhad risk management policics.

The following fable prasants the forcign currency risk from financial instruments as &t 31 March 2022,

Particulars usD EUR Total
Aszeis
Trade raceivablas 17.46 - 17.46
Advance o supplier 0.09 - 0n.0a
17.55 - 17.55
Liahilities
Trade payables 9.45 019 0.464
Liabkility for capital goods - 0,00~ 0.00°
9.45 0.19 G.64
MNet assctsf{liabilities) B.10 T (0.19) 7.91

*represents less than 10,000

The following table analysis foreign currency risk rom financial instruments as at 31 March 2021

Particulars usD EUR Total

Assots

Trade receivables 24.21 - 24.21
24 M - 24,21

Liabilitles

Trade payables ) 4511 218 4729

Borrowings 2.21 - 2.21
47.32 218 44,50

Net liabilitles Za1) (2.18) (25.29)




Artisan Spirits Private Limlted
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amount in F million, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity analysis

The: Tellowing lable analysas the Company's sensitivity 1o a 5% movement in the exchange rates of these currencies against (2} millions | wilh all olher variables
hebd conslanl. The sensitivity analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the Group as at the repering dala

Year ended Year ended

iR 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Impact on Profit before tax

LsD 0.41 1.16
ELR 0.01 011

Credit risk
Credil risk arses from lhe possibilily hal the counter parly may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. The mazimum exposure of the financial assels
are contributed by trade receivables and alber financial assols.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsscured and are darived from revende camed from two main classes of trade receivables ie. receivables from sales to
govermment corporations and receivablas from sales lo privale parlies. The Company's historical experience of collecting receivables is that credit risk is low.
Hence trade receivables are considered 1o he 2 single class of linancial assels.

As at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021
Yo Y
Trade receivables
- [ram government corporaticn 54.70 26.00% 56.69 26.95%
- fram privale parlias 133.32 63.37% 153.68 F3.05%
Total trade receivables |[Refer note 10) 188.02 89.38% 210,37 100.00%
The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected cradit loss 15 stated below:
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance al the beginning of Ihe year 6.27 5.00
Impairment allowance on linancial assals 1.09 1.27

Balance at the end of the yaar 7.36 G.27




Artlzan Splrits Private Limited
Summary of signilicant aceounting policles and other explanatory information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Armount in F millicn, unless otherwise stated)

Liguidity risk
Liquidily is defined as the risk Lhal the Cormpany will nel be able 1o sellle or meel its cbligations on ime or at a reasonable price. The Company's treasury depariment iz

responsible for Bguidily as well as funding management, In addiion, precesses and policles related to such nsks are overseen by senior mansgement. Managemoent
mranilees the Company's nel liguidity positan threegh rolling farecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Thie Lable below provides detalls regarding the contrachual matunities of significant financial liabilities:

Particulars
As at 31 March 2022 On demand LH:;:?“ ! 1.Syears  More than 5 years Total
Bomowings 25.00 15.26 38178 - 422.02
Trade payables - 39,16 = = 2816
Leaze liabilties - .66 0.80 .46
Othor financial liabilifios - 18.71 - 1871
25.00 T3.79 382,56 ¥ 481.35
As at 31 March 2021
Borrowings - 50.62 34,09 - 5.1
Trade payahles - 6h.20 - - H5.20
Other financial liabilities Ci —— 1.59 22.00 - 23.68
11741 236,48 & A73.80

Note 35 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capilal managemenl, capilal includes issued cquily capilal and all olhes 2quly reserves atiibatable to the equity halders of the Company.
The Company sirives to safeguard its abilily to condinue as a going concem so thal ey can magimise relurns for the shareholders and benefits for other stake holders. The
aim Lo mairain an optimal capilal stuclure and mirdmise cosl of capital,

The Company manages its capilal struciure and makes adjustments in light of changes in econamic conditions ard the requiremants of the financial covenants. To maintain
or adjust the capital struclure, lhe Company mey relum capilal 1o sharsholders, Issue new shares or adjust the dividend payment to sharehalders {if permitted). Consislent
wilhy olhors in lhe industry, e Campany moenilars is capital using the gearing ratic which is total debt divided by 1o1al equity.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tzl dokl A422.02 285.01
Total enuily 74.18 (1.98)
Total debt to equity ratio (Gearing ratio) 5.69 (143.92)

In arder to achieve this overzll chiective, the Company's capital managemenl, amongsl olher things, aims lo cnswe thal il meels financial coverants attached to the
barrowdngs that define the capital structure requirements.

Mote 36 Unhedged foreign currency exposure

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Currencles Forelgn currency F millicn Faoreign currency T million

Trade recoivablos UsD 2,30,040.00 1746 3.27 86640 2421
Trade payables EUR 2,250 87 0.19 25,105.50 2.18

uso 1.24,510.80 8,45 B.16,492.25 4511
Capital rade payables EUR 30.00 o.0a* - -
Borrowings = - 30,000.00 2.1
Advance to suppliar usD 1,200.00 (.03 -

“represents bess than 10,000
Note 37 Segment reporting
The Comgany is engaged in the business of manufacture, purchase and sale of beverage alcohol {wines and spiriiz).

The Execidive Commilies of he Campany (being the Chief Operating Decision Mzker) aszesses performance and allocales resources for Lhe business ol the Company as a
winale and hence the management conslders Company’s business aclivilies as a single operaling segment {viz. Goveragse alcohol),

The followdng information discloses exernal revenues and non-current assels based on the phyzical location of the cwsiomons,

Farticulars

Year ended Yoar anced
31 March 2022 A1 March 20
India Outside India India Cutzide India
Revenue from cperations 417,15 1610 2HRPE 17032

Mon-current asseis 205.67 - 15.38 -
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Summary of significant accounting policies and olher explanatory Information to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Note 38 Government grants

The disclosures pursuznt {o Ind AS 20 ‘Accouding for Government Grand and Disclosure of Government Assistance’ are a3 foliows:

Government Granis at the beginning of e yoar
Aalil: Government grant accrued during the year
Less: Govarmment Grand received during the year
Government Granis at the end of the yoar

Current
Man-current

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
9.92 -
9.92 -

878 B
114 -

Govermmenl Granls related fo Wine Incertive Promation Subsidy (WIFS) schame launched by the state of Maharashira, Undes the scheme, YAT p=id by Company onowing
manufacturad from grapes produced in Maharashira and sebseguenlly seld in Maharashia 15 ebgible for 80% refund. The Company being invelved in the business of wine
manufacluring, avails WIS incentive. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached o these grants.

Note 39 Disclosure of ratics

Particulars

Farmula for computation

Measurs(In times/percentaga) &s atand for the  As at and for the

Carrent Ratlo
Dzbl Equily Raliv
Dbt Service coverage Ratio

Raturn on Egquity
Imwentory Tumover Fatio
Trade receivabks: wrnower ratio

Trade Payable turnover ratio

Mezt Capital e ralio

Met Mrofit Ratio

Rexlurn an Cagilal Employed (ROGE)
Retwrn on Investmant (RO

Notas;

1 Dl = Mon-currenl horsowings + Current bormowings
2 Met worth = Paid-up share capilal + Boserves crealed oul of profil - Accumutated lngses

G EBITOA = Earvings before finance costs, depreciation expense and tax and exceplional ilems

yiar enched year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Courrerd assels f Curent labéties Tirmas 325 2.TH
Dbt ! Mat worth Timas 560 (143.94)
EBITDA  (Finante costs + Principal Tirnes
regayment of kong lerm borrowings wilthin one 127 2.0
o)
Profit afier tax / Net worth Percentage 22.80% -1350.51%
Cosl ol qoods soki § Average invenony Tinmes 273 512
Rewvanue from sale of product and services ! Times 208 25
Ao qross Irade receivables ) g
Purchases § fverage irade payables Tirnes A.81 10.19
Rewvenue from operations working capital — Times 1.72 1892
Prodit afier tax  Hevenue from operations Percentage 3.92% HA2%
EBIT ! Capilal crployed Porcendange 11.74% 23.60%
Mol Apgdicabie MNLA. M.A, oA

4 Cost of qoods sold = Gosl of maledals consumed + Purchase of stock-in-trede + Changes in inventories of finished goods, slock-in-rawde and work-in-progress
G Met purchase = Purchise of sleci-in-rade + Goslof materals consumed + Closing inventory of raw materials and packing maturials - Qpening inventony of raw materials and

packing malerials

& Working Capital = Cuerent assats - Current liabilties

T EBIT = Earnings before inkeresl and e and exccpdion:sl lems
B Capital employed = Total equity + Mon-current borrowings

Explanation for variance In ratlo by more than 25%

Parliculars

Current Ratio

Doid Equily Raofio

Debt Service coverags Ratio
Raturn on Egquity

Inventory Turnover Ralio
Trade receivable trnover ratio
Trade Payalike lurnover ralio
Met Capital turnover rafio

Mol Pealil Fatin

Return on Capilal Empleyed (ROCE)

Mate: Since the change in ratio is lkess than 25%, no explanadion is reguired Lo be disclosed.

% Wariance in ratio betwaan
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021

Reason for Variance in excess of 25%

15%
104%
=37 %
0%
=47
-11%
-45%
=10%

-33%
-G0%

Razlicr pagee blow

Cwing to improvemend in Melwolb

Ciwing to increase in debs

Owing to improvement in Met waorh

Owing to increase in invantory

Relesr node helnw

Crwing lex inercase in average taade payable
Refer node helow

Decrease in Revenue accompanied by increase in other capoenges linance costs
& deprocialion
Cnwing to increase in borrowings
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Mote 40 Leasas - Ind AS 116
1. Right-of-use Assets:

The net carrying value of right-of-use assets as al 31 March 2022 amounts to F 1.29 million {31 March 2021: Nil) have been disclosed on
the face of the balance sheel (Also refer note 34)

Lease lahilities:

As at 31 March 2022, the obligations under finance leases amounts to T 1.33 million (31 March 20271: Nil) which have been classified o
leaso liabilities, under financial liabilities. (Also refer nole 15)

Particulars Az at

31 March 2022
Current Lease liabililies 0.81
Mon-Current Lease liabilitics 0.52
Total Lease liahilities 1.33

(1) The following is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022

As at

31 March 2022
Balance as at 1 April 2021 =

Additions during the pariod 1.74
Finance cost accrued during the period 0.09
Paymenl of lease liabilities {0.50)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1.33

(i} The table below provides details regarding the confractual maturities of lease liabilities:

Contractual cash flows
Lease Liabilities 5 years and
Carrying amount Total 0-1 year 1-5 years above
31 March 2022 1.33 1.46 0.66 0.80 -
31 March 2021 - - - - -

2. The Company recognised the following in the statement of profit and loss:

: Year ended
F-
articulars 31 March 2022
Depraciation expenses on right-of-use asscts (Refer note 3A and 28) 0.45
Finance cost on lease liabilities (Refer note 27) 0.09

Fenl expense pertaining to leases of low-value assots -

Rent expense pertaining to leases with less than twelve months of lease included under renl expenses (Refer Mote
26) 6.17
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Mote 41 Business Combination
a. Summary of acquisition

The Company w.e.f, 1 August 2021 has acquired the business operations of York Winery Private Limited ("YW PL'), together with all the brands,
infrastructures in relation to the winery and as a going concern on a slump sale basis for a tolal consideration of T 171,65 million.

YWPL is engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of domestic wines from its winery in Masik, India. It also has small set up for
tasting room and restaurant within winery. The acquisition will help the Company in expanding the markel share in Maharashira and other
states. The wine tourism at the winery will help in crealing awareness about Lhe wine which will in lurn boost the growth in the wine market. The
details of nel assels acquired and purchase consideration are as follows,

As at
Particulars 31 March 2022
Proparty plant and cquipment 74.65
Inventories 36,83
Loans and advance 371
Trade receivables 032
Cash and cash equivalents 0.13
Brand 5030
Trade payables (16.00)
Other current liahilitics {5.72)
Met identifiable assets at fair value 163.22
Goodwill arising on acguisition (Refer note 4) 85.43
Purchase consideration payable 171.65
Cash flow on acquisition
Purchase consideration paid 161.65

- Pursuant 1o business ransfer agreement, deferred consideration of 10,00 million shall be payable after realisation of contain assets
acquired,

- There were no conlingen! consideration arrangement involvad in relation to above acquisition,

- The transaction did not involve any inheritance of contingent liability.

- This acquisition gave rise to goodwill amounting fo ¥ 8.43 million, being excess of consideralion amounl over fair value of assets under
acquisition. The said goodwill being capital in the nalure is not eligible W be deducled for ax purposes,

b. Revenue and Profit contribution
The acquired business contributed revenus from operation of ¥ 68.54 million and earned profit bofore fax of F 7.93 million to the Company for
the perind 1 August 2021 to 31 March 2022

If the acquisition had taken place on 1 April 2021, then contribution of York to the revenue from operation and profil for the period 1 April 2021
to 31 March 2022 would have been ¥ 102.81 million and F 11,90 million and the resullant pro-forma revenue from operation and profit of the
Company would have been § 467.52 million and F 20,96 million respectivaly
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Mote 42: Additional regulatory information required under Schedule 1|
{i) The Company doas not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any

Benami property.

(ii} The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

(i} The Company does not have any charges or salisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutony
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virual Currency during the financial year.

(v} The Company has nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermedianies)
wilh the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or; .

b. provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entitylies), including foreign entilies (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in wriling or olherwise) that The Company shall:

a. directlly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party
(Uitimate Beneficiarios) or

b. provide any guarantee, sccurity or the like on behall of the Ullimate Beneficiaries,

{vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is nol recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 19681 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

{viil) The Company has not bean declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority,

{ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

(%) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangemant which has an accounting impact on the current or previous financial year

Mote 43 Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified, o conform to the current year's presentation wherever considered
nNecessary,

This is a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information referred to in our
report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Artisan Spirits
Chartered Acniuun nts Private Limited
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Chaitanya Rathi ittu Varghese
Director Director
DI - 07705302 DI - 08708247
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Company Secretary
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